City of Gig Harbor Planning Commission
Minutes of Work-Study Session
January 17, 2008
Gig Harbor Civic Center

PRESENT: Commissioners Jim Pasin, Harris Atkins, Theresa Malich, Jill Guernsey,
Joyce Ninen and Dick Allen. Commissioner Jeane Derebey was absent. Staff
present. Jennifer Kester, Tom Dolan and Diane Gagnon.

CALL TO ORDER: 6:00 p.m.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Commissioner Harris Atkins nominated Theresa Malich to serve another term as Chair
and Commissioner Jill Guernsey seconded the nomination.

Commissioner Joyce Ninen nominated Harris Atkins to serve another term as Vice
Chair and Theresa Malich seconded the nomination.

MOTION: Move to elect Theresa Malich as Chair and Harris Atkins as Vice
Chair. Ninen/Guernsey — Motion passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

It was noted that at the bottom of page two it should say Mr. Pasin rather than Ms.
Pasin, at the top of page two change the word “their” to “the” and spell out Boundary
Line Adjustment.

MOTION: Move to approve the minutes for January 3", 2008 as amended.
Ninen/Atkins — Motion passed unanimously.

Senior Planner Jennifer Kester noted that the second item on the agenda,;
Nonconforming Uses in the R-2 zone and nonconforming structures regulations,

may have some conflict of interest issues since a Planning Commission member may
have a chance to benefit and may need to recuse themselves. Ms. Kester suggested
that the commission may want to move this to the last item on the agenda or limit the
discussion to the nonconforming uses. It was decided that this item would be moved to
the end of the agenda and Theresa Malich and Dick Allen would recuse themselves at
that time since they own property in an R-2 zone.

1. City of Gig Harbor, 3510 Grandview Street, Gig Harbor WA 98335 - To
finalize a memo to City Council for further direction on the topic of
underground structures. Memo includes new definitions for gross floor area,
underground building and attic.

Page 1 of 6



Ms. Kester pointed out the memo that she had drafted on the proposed amendments
related to underground structures and asked that the commission look it over to assure
that it conveyed their thoughts on the issue. She then talked about the draft definitions.

Planning Commissioner Joyce Ninen mentioned that she was unsure if underground
building was the appropriate term and suggested perhaps space or area. Discussion
followed on perhaps using underground floor area. Everyone agreed to change the
term to floor area and Ms. Kester said that she would change the text and any
references.

Planning Commissioner Jill Guernsey brought up an issue with the definition of gross
floor area, to perhaps remove the word several and change floor to floor(s). Planning
Commissioner Pasin asked why it states “or buildings” and Ms. Kester said that the
issue is that by code a building that appears to be one can be separated by firewalls
and technically be made into several buildings. Ms. Kester explained the performance
standards. Planning Commissioner Harris Atkins said that the sentence implies that
several buildings might be on one lot. He asked if it was still covered in the
performance standards if we removed buildings. Mr. Pasin asked why someone
couldn’t have several buildings together under separate ownership. Ms. Kester
explained that the exterior mass of the building is what is calculated. Mr. Dolan stated
that this language will allow us to administer the code better. Ms. Guernsey suggested
that it say “of each floor” rather than “at each floor”. Everyone thought that “at each
floor” was the appropriate phrase. Mr. Pasin suggested that they remove the phrase
entirely and Ms. Guernsey agreed. Ms. Kester asked what would be calculated, the floor
area or the entire area and explained that was why “at each floor” was necessary.

Mr. Pasin asked about interior balconies and mezzanines and how they are calculated.
Ms. Kester explained how they were calculated and defined. Ms. Ninen asked about
the mechanical equipment room and how it is calculated. Ms. Kester explained that the
units that are not in a room would not be counted. Ms. Ninen clarified that gross floor
area for the waterfront will be discussed at another time.

It was asked by Mr. Pasin if in Item B. it was referencing attached and detached and
Ms. Kester replied that yes that was in the performance standards. Mr. Pasin then
asked about underground floor area where it says 24 linear feet of access. He asked
how that would work and Ms. Kester said that she believed that the decision was that
this issue would be discussed after hearing the public input. They referenced an e-mail
from Randy Boss and Ms. Kester further explained that they will decide on what that
exact number is after the public hearing, this memo is just to let the council know that
the commission wants to make a provision for access. Mr. Pasin asked why they would
want to limit the access point so that someone would instead have acres of parking. Mr.
Atkins reminded him that the Planning Commission is trying to allow underground
parking in a reasonable way. Mr. Dolan suggested that it could say as required by the
building code. Ms. Kester said that she would clarify in the council memo that these
issues were not firm.

Page 2 of 6



Ms. Kester then asked if they were done with the definitions and if everyone was okay
with the memo. Ms. Ninen felt that the memo was very concise. Ms. Kester asked for a
motion to approve the memo and direct Chairman Malich to sign it.

MOTION: Move to authorize the Chair to send this memo to council as
amended. Atkins/Ninen - Motion passed with Mr. Pasin opposed.

Chairman Malich called a short recess at 7:00 p.m. The meeting was reconvened at
7:05 p.m.

2. City of Gig Harbor, 3510 Grandview Street, Gig Harbor WA 98335 —
ZONE 07-0006 — Removal of Mixed Use District overlay and determination of
appropriate underlying zoning.

Ms. Kester displayed a map of the overlay area. She stated that the consensus among
staff, the City Attorney and the City Council is that the overlay needs to be removed.
She explained how overlays usually work, adding restrictions and that this one allows
additional uses. Ms. Kester explained what would happen if the overlay were removed
and the underlying zones were left, stating that some of the properties would be
effectively down zoned. She stated that the comprehensive plan has designated this
area as a mixed use area. Mr. Pasin said that if we remove the overlay and the road
gets developed then there is an opportunity to rezone around it to something more
appropriate. Ms. Kester pointed out 96" street and explained the proposed split
diamond approach and how the new interchange may affect this area. She stated that
this area will change so the question is whether we want to change it now or wait for
when the interchange is put in and examine it then. Mr. Atkins said that it seemed like
the Mixed Use District was a good idea and asked why it failed. Ms. Kester answered
that some of the property owners have taken advantage of the zoning or are anticipating
taking advantage of the Mixed Use District but first there was a transportation issue and
then a sewer issue. Mr. Atkins said that the underlying zoning doesn’t seem to make
sense, but rezoning is a large project. Ms. Kester suggested that the Mixed Use District
could become its own zone they could just rezone everything in the overlay. She said
that there will be some property owners who won't like that. Mr. Atkins said that he had
driven the area and it was quite amazing all the stuff that was in there. Mr. Pasin stated
that he thought that some of the area actually didn’t reflect the area where the uses
would probably grow once the interchange is in place.

Ms. Guernsey asked about the effects of removing the overlay and just having the
underlying zoning. Ms. Kester explained how the overlay is applied. Ms. Ninen
suggested changing the Mixed Use District to include the uses currently in the
underlying zone. Ms. Kester agreed that the Mixed Use District could be tweaked to
include some of the uses and standards from the other zones. She said that she would
most closely liken the Mixed Use District to the B-2 zone with a density calculation that
is much lower. Additionally, she noted that the traffic studies that were done assumed
highest and best use. Ms. Kester then explained how it would need to happen if they

Page 3 of 6



were to create a mixed use zone stating that it would not be that difficult but would have
to add some impervious surface limitations and some rewording.

Ms. Kester said that she could work on a proposal to make the mixed use overlay a
zone. Mr. Pasin said that he was concerned about the section that distinguishes
between different size parcels and Ms. Kester said that section may have to go away.
Mr. Pasin said that he also had a concern with zone transition. Mr. Atkins agreed that
was something to be considered, but suggested they pick an approach and then look at
those issues. Ms. Kester then highlighted the land use designation. Everyone agreed
that Ms. Kester would work on a mixed use district zone and then they could discuss the
boundaries, etc. Mr. Pasin stated that he was concerned that some of the area needed
to be another zone and everyone agreed that that may be true but that right now they
just needed to figure out what a mixed use zone is and then decide what area will be
within it and what some of the other properties might be zoned. Ms. Guernsey
suggested that at the next meeting they have an aerial photo so that they can see what
is there now.

3. Direct Council consideration of an ordinance that would standardize
how residential heights are measured in Historic Districts.

Planning Director Tom Dolan explained that this was the result of the height issue with
the two new homes being constructed along Harborview. He noted that there is a
provision in the Historic District that is not in any other zone that says height is
measured from natural grade for residential. He continued by saying that staff is
proposing a small change that will make how you determine height consistent
throughout the height restriction area. He explained that the change would be to
change the wording to say “natural and finished grade” so that it would be the same for
residential or commercial. Mr. Dolan stated that the City Council was asking for direct
consideration on this item.

Mr. Pasin said that he thought it needed further discussion. Ms. Malich suggested that
this might be a good subject for a combined meeting of the DRB and Planning
Commission. Ms. Kester said that it is a larger question as to whether the height
allowed is even correct. Mr. Dolan said he recommended that the larger discussion
happen in the examination of the view basin plan. Ms. Kester explained how this will be
more restrictive. Discussion followed on how structures are measured.

MOTION: Move to recommend the Council enter into direct consideration of this
item. Ninen/Atkins — Motion passed unanimously.

Theresa Malich and Dick Allen recused themselves for the next item.
4. City of Gig Harbor, 3510 Grandview Street, Gig Harbor WA 98335 —

ZONE 07-0031 — Nonconforming Uses in R-2 zone and nonconforming
structures regulations.

Page 4 of 6



Ms. Kester referred everyone to the ordinance that the City Council is considering. Mr.
Pasin asked about the section on non conformities and that he thought that it applied
across the board. Ms. Kester explained that the change to all the other zones had never
been passed by Council and now they are asking if this new language for R-2 should
apply to the whole city. She pointed out that the new 17.68.035 is to replace 17.68.030.
She went over other new sections and what sections they replaced and how they could
be rewritten for all zones within the city rather than just R-2. Ms. Ninen asked if these
code changes will solve the problem for the people who can’t get insurance or financing.
Ms. Kester said that yes, this should solve their problem. Ms. Ninen if R-2 usually only
allowed up to a duplex and Ms. Kester said that cities are different so there is really no
standard. Mr. Atkins asked if they were to make the uses conditional in R-2 would that
have the same effect. Ms. Kester said that the triplex or fourplex might still be a
nonconforming structure not just a nonconforming use. Ms. Ninen agreed that in
addition to the nonconforming change the uses should be conditional. Ms. Kester said
that they may also have to change the impervious surface standards. She also
cautioned them that it may not result in many fourplexes due to the density standards.
Mr. Pasin said that he felt it helped in affordable housing and density requirements. Ms.
Kester also suggested that they may want to look at a minimum density and noted that
minimum residential densities have been an issue. Mr. Atkins reiterated their desire to
proceed with this ordinance revised to apply to the entire city and look at the R-2
standards with another text amendment to modify the uses and standards in the R-2
zone. Everyone agreed.

Ms. Kester clarified that the nonconforming allowance would apply to commercial and
residential. Discussion followed on the ramifications of the continuation of
nonconforming commercial uses. Ms. Ninen said that she felt that maybe commercial
should not be allowed. Mr. Pasin said that he felt that it should apply to both. Ms.
Guernsey went over the sections to clarify what issue each applied to. Ms. Kester
explained and also gave examples of some nonconforming uses and structures. Mr.
Atkins said that this issue is much larger than he originally thought. Ms. Guernsey said
that right now she would like to limit it to residential. Ms. Kester said that they could
have another work study session and staff could draft two different ordinances for
consideration. Mr. Pasin reminded everyone that the commercial structures make up
our community. Mr. Atkins agreed that there are many structures that are worth saving
but that he just wanted to look at the issue further. Mr. Dolan suggested that staff could
come with some examples of nonconforming structures and uses. Mr. Atkins said that
he felt that the purpose is to address the problem raised and he thought they should
look at it further. Ms. Guernsey clarified the language and its meaning and that the
issue with respect to uses is do they allow any nonconforming use to rebuild if it's
destroyed by an act of God. Mr. Atkins said that the other section that concerned him
was the section about vacancy. Mr. Dolan reminded the commission that by State law
nonconforming uses are designed to go away because if you don’t want them to go
away, you should rezone it.

UPCOMING MEETINGS

Page 5 of 6



Ms. Kester reminded everyone that the next meeting is on February 7™ and that two
items will be coming back from this meeting and they also needed to tackle the other
two items for this quarter. She suggested adding the item on office uses in the
Waterfront Millville zone. Mr. Pasin suggested that for the Mixed Use subject they know
what applications are currently in the system.

Ms. Kester then let the commission know that the Council had approved the work
program and there was discussion that the Planning Commission might need more time
and staff agreed that they would facilitate a modification to the work program if more
time was needed rather than rush items through. Mr. Dolan said that probably in April
they will have another joint meeting with the City Council. Mr. Atkins asked that they
know about possible dates and Assistant Planner Diane Gagnon agreed to contact the
City Clerk to coordinate possible dates.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Move to adjourn at 8:38 p.m. Guernsey/Ninen — Motion passed.

Page 6 of 6



